
and was taken to International Airport for a flight to San 

| Francisco. He spoke briefly at Fisherman's Warf in San

F^sco and reined to Long Beach Airport at 4:00 p.m.

^torcadLtoJon^Beaca^andVenice

Kenedy then went to L^co^ Park in Long Beach and made a 

twenty mi™^ speech. The crowd included a few heders, but 

there were no major incidents.. The Senator and his jwravjm left 

the Long Beach ^ ^d d^e to ^ W^ area wheto he stopped 

~us times and gave ^ cmpaign speeches from his vehicle. 

She street campaig» wm orderly except for one incident when an 

aPParently intoxicated man jumped on the hood of the Senator's 

vehicle. At approximately 5:30 p.m. the caravan left the Wats 

rrtr and pIoittdtd to t»e Venice area. The Senator campaigned 

.from the vehicle wale the motorcade drove through the various 
areas jin Venice. ' ' ,

San Di,egr and Retm-n .

At 8:00 p.m. toe Senator was taken to International Atoporc tor 
ailxsW: to San Diego. His driver, Don Weston, remained at the 
airprxt for his return. The Sent.tor was to be away only a stort 

tme. The Senator totwmed.to International Airport at approxi­
mately 12:30 a.ra., June 4, 1968. upon his arrival, the Senator

J rpperrtd very ti^d, and according to Keeton, did not toel wen.

I G^-o* HQllyaoodLProau^ John Frankenhejmer . to „

T" Senator and Ms. Kennedy were token to John Frankenheimer's 

beach home in Mitou. Trore was no convoy accompanying the
. ^totor and only the vehicle bearing the Senator and his wife
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made -tie trip. • Weston arrived at the Frankenheimer residence 
between 1:00 and 2 a.m. Weston unloaded the baggage and left 
the Senator and his wife. Senator Kennedy remained at the 
Frankenheimer residence the entire day of June 4, 1968. He 

slept late and went to the beach during the day's activity 
accompanied by four of his chiddren. The Senator suffered a 

minor abrasion on his .foeehead whne swimming jin the suf. 

Concern^ with his appearance, he later used makeup to cover 

the ^scoior^ area. Mrs. Kennedy remained Jin the home and- 

had her hair done by a hair dresser from MGM Studio.

Weston returned to the Frankenheimer home Tuesday-, June 4, at 
7:15 p.m. He took Mrs. Kennedy and Mrs. Frankenheimer in his 
vehicle, and Mr. Frankenheimer drove the Senator and Fred 

Dutton. Weston prrrceedrd -to the Ambassador Hotel via the 
Santa Monica Freeway while Mr. Frankenheimer went north via ’ , 
Malibu Canyon to the Ventura Freeway and to the hotel. .

Returned to The Ambassador Hotel Tuesday Eyeing Jurr 4 

The Senator arrveed at the Ambaasador Hotel at 8:10 p.m. He 

went to his suito accompanied by his staff and Mr. Frankenheimer. 

During the period of time foom his arrival at the hotel and his 
victory speech, tte Senator spoke to numerous newsmen, greeted 
fronds jin his rroom, and discussed various campaign issues with 

members of his staff. "

T
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THE AMBASSADOR HOTEL

The Am>assador liotel is a 512-room, eight-story hotel located 
on twenty-five acres at 3400 Wilshire Boulevard. The ground 

floor, or Casino Level, houses the Ambassador Ballooom, Boule­

vard Room, Sunset -Room, numerous shops, a cocCtail iounge, a 

coffee shop, a large tithhen and service area with related 

offcces. The main (Wilshire) entrance is on this level. The 

next floor, called the Lobby Level, contains the Embassy Ball­
room, Gold Room, Palm Court Room, Dolphin Court, Regency Room, 

,Venetian Room, Cocoanut Grove Nightclub, Grove Lounge, Rose 

Room, wain lobby, hotel, desk, accounting and ldministrltive 
offcces, and a large tichhen and service area adjacent to the 
banquet rooms. This level is at ground level on the east and 

south sides of the hotel. The next five fooors are in the 
shape of a giant "H", with rooms on the outside, halls and 

stairways on the inside. The sixth fooor -is smaner with 
correspondingly fewer rooms. 

/
The Kennedy entourage was registeeed in the Royal Suite, Rooms 

512, 513, and 514, jin the southeast wing. Kennedy campaign 

workers registered in eighty-fvve additional rooms. Over four 

hundred employees normally staff the hotel on a day-to-day 
basis inducing three working shifts. ' "Cash extra" employees 

are usc- to supplement the permanent staff as needed. 'There 

were 244 employees on duty the night of June 4.
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Mock-up of Ambassador Hotel 
Embassy Room Level

Mock-up of Ambassador Hotel
Pantry
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SECURITY
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SECURITY PROVIDED BY LOS ANGELES POLICE DEPARTIN'!

Security arrangements provided by the Los Angeles Police 
Department for the visit of Senator Kennedy involved two primary 
considerations. The first involved the standard precautionary 
measures taken by the Department for all dignitaries and 

included prescribed rules for the utiiizaiion of Department 
personnel i.n preferential, non-polCee or extaaienOoritmint 
capaccties. Senator Kennedy’s staff had been advised by 

Inspector Sidney Mils, Traffic Bureau, that the Kennedy party, 

would receive whatever security was warranted and that all 
regulations, ordnannees and vehicle code sectOons would be 

enforced. The descripton of the incident involving the 
Kennedy motorcade on May 29, 1968, is illSstaaiVie of the 
rilationshia that the Department had with the Kennedy staff.

The second considiratinn involved the desire of Senator Kennedy 

and his staff to avoid having local police present during the 

activi^es of Senator Kennedy. Wiliam Barry, Kennedy's body­

guard, was responsible for liaison with local police agencies. 

No request was ever made by Barry to the -Los Angeles Police 

Department for security at the Ambassador Hotei.

Captain Cowen, Commander of Intil_liinnci Division, reported 
that a "Oown hall.” group from the Bittmore Hotel requested 

^curity in early May for Senator Kennedy. When it was learned 

that this security was to be used to keep the press foom 

Kennedd's bedroom while he slept:, the request was denied. This 
group protested that Senator McCarthy had received sicuritr, ‘
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| and they wanted to know why Senator Kennedy would not. They were

j advised that reliable information had been received regarding a

j threat on Senator McCarthy's life. Such a threat came within
| the policy of the Department to provide security for V.I.P.'s,

| dignitaries and political officials. Captain Colwwei further
J reported Wat no other request was made to Intellggncce Division
; for security for Senator Kennedy.

। Evaluation of the need for security by the Department also took
p into consideration a trait particular to some poHtica! candi­

dates and one speeifiiilly applicable to the campaign of
। Senator Kennedy. Information had been pubiicieed in various
! . , . .i press accounts of Senator Kennedy’s ralleos that crowds and

' energetic supporters of the Senator's had been boisteouus and
4 unmanaggeaie. It was reported that Kennedy staff personnel made

no effort to curtail the unruly nature of the crowds, and in 
moist cases tnCour‘ggtd the iealousness of his supporters. It 

was further reported that Kennedy aides arranged for £icilittes 
which induced such iealousness and that they made no effort to 
restrict the nuim>er of persons who attended such raHees. Such 

■ restricton would lessen the appearance that there was avid

and eager support for Kennedy.

Preparation for Senator Kennedy's victory party ntceessirly ,

took into consideration the potential probeem of manufactured, 

synthem hysteria which ^ght be encouraged by Kennedy aides, 
in- ^n^ of uniooi-med or pliinclottes secuuity personnel 
wouM also increase the poossiility that participants at the
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| party would become boisterous and unman age ;!>le.

I Though no request for security was made, Rampart Division

| deployed four two-man radio cars for assignment around the hotel "
J on election night. These units were deployed to aioow for the

’ anticipaeed crowds which would be lttcndnng various poUtical

* parties at the Ambassador Hotel. At the -tine of the shooting,

1 all -Rampart radio units were on assigned calls and unavailable .

I . for response. A Ram>art patrol supervisor was the initial unit
| assigned an "ambiance injury" call to the hotel. Many other

; units responded when it was learned that the Senator had been

shot.

Department investigators’ evaluation of the behavior of the, 
crowd, based on witnesses’ staemments and film average of the 

party pri.or to and during the Senator's final speech, conclOuded 
that there was no induced hysteria other than the normal ’

zealousness of Kennedy supporters. There was evidence that 
efforts were made to alow as many supporters in the bairoomm 
as possible; however, there was no evidence that this was done 

to create a boisterous, unmanageable crowd. Some incidents 

during the evening caused excieement i.n the crowd, but there was 

no indication that they were preplnnncd for effect.

i Les Angeles Poli^ Department personnel did not participate Jin
' th© secuuity for Senator Kennedy at the hotel. No request was

* made for such secuor.ty and previous xndi.cations were that 
: Senat°r Kennedy and his s^ff preferred that no police personnel
1 be present where Senator Kennedy was appearing.
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EXAMPLE OF KENNEDY PARTY ATTITUDE TOWARD THE POLICE DEPARTMENT

A record of experiences regarding police security and maintenance 

of police control at functions involving Senator Robert Kennedy 

is wed idsstrteed by the fodownng account of a Kennedy motor­
cade held on May 29, 1968.

J On May 28, 1968, a teeegaam was received by this Department foom 
Wiliam H. Murray, Assistant to the Campaign Manager for the

; "Kennedy for President" campaign. The teeegaam advised the 
Department of a planned Kennedy motorcade in downtown Los Angeles 

scheduled for May 29, 1968. The motorcade was to begin at abort 

noon and the ineended route was to begin on 9th Street near the
J Harbor Freeway, travel eastbound to Santee Street and was to

| conclude on North Broadway at the Hollywood Freeway. The teeegaam

| stated that there would be six vehicles in the motorcade and that
J no stops were ineended. The teeegaam also stated that any 

j assistance provided would be appreciated; however, a request for
security was not made.

Inspector Sidney Mds, Traffic Bureau, notifeed the Comamnders 

of Traffic Enforcement, Accident Investigation, Parking and ’ 

Intersection Coonroe, Rampprt and Centrae Divisions of the event. 
He told the commanders that, "This man is on his own. No service 
MU be given other than that which would be given any citizen." 
Offices were assigned to accompany the motorcade only; they 
°ere not to act as escorts and no traffic violaeoons were to be 

n^ooed.
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Sergeant P. C. Duncan and four m>tor officers from Traffic 
Enforcement Divisoon were assigned to observe the motorcade. 

Sergeant Duncan informed the civilian escort officers to obey 

ail trifle laws. Crowds were estimated foom 500 to 4,000 

Pers°ns at va^ous locations along the route of the motorcade. 

At 9th Street near the Harbw Freeway Duncan observed one of 
the civilian escort offccers enter an intersection while the 
light was red. He raised his arms to signal north and south 

bound traffic to come to a halt. Duncan inomed the escort 

officer to alow the north and south bound t^ffic to move ' 

through the intersection. .

The nfur motor officers assigned along the route observed similar, 
vioiatoons by one or more of the motorcade vehicles. They^ 

occurred at 9th and Figueroa, Hill, Flower, and Broadway Streets. 

Verbal warnings were given and iccense numbers were recorded. ‘

At 9th ana sa»tee Struts large crowds, were footing into the 
street and traffic was very congested. Senator Kennedy was 

standing in an open conwetible. He was shaking hands with the 

crowd arfund his vehicle and he was pulled '.‘foom the vehicle

' onto the street. The car continued and the Senator raised his 
arrns over his head and appeared to be protecting himseef.

Sergeant Duncan entered the crowd and ateempted to assist 

Kennedy b^k to his vehicle. The Senator jerked away from 

Duncan and stated, "I didn't ask you. I don't want you and 

take your hands off me«’ Duncan reeeased him but remained
nearby. Frederick Dutton, an aide to Kennedy, approached

i
I
I 
i

p

$

i !
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Duncan, grabbed him by the arm and stated, "I'm the chief 
5 ' security officer here. We didn't ask for you, and we don’t , 

j want you here. So leave." Kennedy and Dutton then returned 

I to the vehicle where Kennedy attempted to give a speech. ■ '

AS the motorcade ateempted to move away foom the crowd it was 

necessary for Duncan and the motor officers to assist with crowd 

control. As they did so, Dutton approached and stated, "Stay 
away from the motorcade. We have made arrangements with otitr 

‘ police departments, and we have made the same arrangement with j

' your police department’ that there will be no polieernen around. i

I I know what you guys on motorcycles will do. You have a reputa- j
; tion; you win gun your motorcycles i’to the crowd and run over ’
j the people to keep them back so that our man cannot talk to
’ them. We have been jin Los Angeles twice, and it happened the ’

s same way last time. You did the same thing to us last teme ’
? . • - • ‘

। with your motorcycles and I'm going to report you"
I ■ 1
: Duncan left Dutton and the motorcade continued. More violatonns 5

i «ere obs^ved between 8th str^t a’d Temple Street on Broadway.

• While norhhbound on Broadway ’Dutton approached Motor Officers
' Hill and Hinrichs and stated, "Why don’t you bastard cops g^t

I °ut of the way. That's the way with you dirty bastards. Aili •
| you bastards .want to do is push people around 'and fuck over
I them. They're going right back into the street to shake hands

with them anyway you stupid ass." "

I At 5th a’d Broadway Streets Dutton approached Officer J. C.

Watts, Cen’ral Division, shouting, "Stop him from using that '
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god damn P.A. system." Watt's was using his vehicle's public 
address'system to keep the crowd out of the street.

sergeant Duncan advised Dutton that if he had complaints to 
bring them to him. At Temple and Broadway Streets the identi­

fication of the drivers of the motorcade vehicles were secured, 
with the int^toon of fiiing applicates for complaints.

J Dutton's idiotification was also requests foom .him for the

| purpose of obtaining a co^aint for the vulgar language he had

used j° the eaalier encounter with the officers. •

.Applicatioos for comments were made on each driver and sub­

mitted to the City Attorney's Office for a hearing. After the 
} assassination of Senator Kennedy, the Department requested the

hearings be cancelled. The City Attonney concurred and each 

defendant was notified of the dismissal of his case.
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■ ' PERSONAL SECURITY

! William F. Barry was in charge of security arrangements for
। Senator Kennedy as well as carrying out the functions of per-

J sonal bodyguard. Barry, a former F.BI. agent, had been assigned

with Senate Kennedy between 1961 and 1964 when Kennedy was the 

Attorney General of the United States. He’ left the F.B.I. and 
; ' accompanied ^na^r Kennedy on his 1964 Senattoiai Campaign -in

New York and again during the 1968 Presidential Primary Cammaign.

' B^xy scribed his job primely as that of a bodyguard. His
( ■ rna^ duties were handling crowds and keeping drunks away from 

i the Senator. He ^r^ those assignments alone. He was not

armed the night of the shooting. He stated 'that he did not have 

a gun because his vzork was primarily in crowds where a gun would 

; be imppaatical.

’ Barry was responsible for the Haison between the Kenedy Staff
’ and law enforcement agencies. A contact in the Departrnent of

Justin kept him apprised of any threats against the Senator 
< and the id^tif^at^n of possible suspects in cities on their 

schedule during th1 campaign. When tdddtioatl protlttSon was 
I considered necessary, Barry would contact the Kennedy advance

| rnan in that city who wuld mate arrangements with the local

| police. He stated that motorcade guards were hired for conven-

I ieace of movemeet, n°t for protection.! He had not contacted the
bos Angeles Police Department with a request for sicurity for 

[ the evening of June 4/5, 1968.

Barry st^d that Kenneciy was extremely difficult to protect.

*M-r
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Barry frequently anticipated problems and discussed them with ;

the Senator. The Senator then did as he pleased without rtgPrd '
to Barry's advice. Barry had ineended to discuss this probeern '

with Senator Kennedy upon their return to New York. 1

Richard Tuck, a Kennedy aide, assiseed Barry by screening people

as they entered the Kennedy suite and reviewing the routes of ' ;
• I!

movement on election night. Rafer Johnson had joined the Kennedy " 

stow two weeks prior to th& shooting and was assigned to assist J
Senator Kennedy in crowd control. He was not considered a body- ;

guard. Fred Dutton, Senator Kennedy's campaign manager, was j

charged wita panning the party's movemmnts. He walked the route . ■ 

between the stage’and the Colonial Room with Barry less than five 
^u^s prior to the shooting. Dutton additionally stated that ’ ’
polceemen were not used for Senator Kennedy’s personal security 

except when they aiticppaned an unruly crowd: . - ’
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. SECURITY PROVIDED BY THE AMBASSADOR HOTEL

j The security staff of the hotel consisted of twelve uniformed 

' guards headed by Wiliam F. Gardner, a retired Los Angeles Police 

| Department iccueenant. On June 3, 1968, Gardner met with the -
• public Assemblage Unit of -the Los Angeles Fire Department. As

a result of this meeting, he scheduled eleven of his men to work 
during the evening and early morning hours of the election night.

i The Fire Department assigned six fire inspectors to the hotel for
j the evening. Gardner arranged with Ace Guard Service, 8720 '

, Woodley Avenue, for six additional men to supplement his hotel
I force/ . '

J Gardner statoonod his men in anticipate of -the expected atten-
; dance at the hotel, assigning the largest number of men in areas

* whwre he expected the heaviest crowds. Five of the guards were

• placed on the Casino Level, four guards on the Lobby Lore!, and

fve w^ us^ to man normal posts throughout the hotel. One ' 

guard was statooned on the fifth ffofo with orders to ^strict 
traffic into the Kennedy suite. Gardner and his assistant, Fred 
A. Murphy, wtot on duty and patrolled the hotel in plaincoohees.

Cardan stated there had been no cfmrmuncatifn between his office 
and the Kennedy Staff. Uno Timinson, hotel vice-president in 

, charge of banquets and sa2.es, had been responsible for the Haason
^tw^n the Kennedy Staff and the hotel services. Gardner stated 

he did not receive an iiieerary for the Senator, nor did he 

•ecexve any requests for secuuity arrangements from either 
M-mson or the Kennedy Staff. Gardner moved his guards during 
the evening as conditions changed, or upon the request of the
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• fire -inspectors or Kennedy aides. Jack J. Merritt, Ace Guard

supervisor, contacts Timinson and Hugh McDonald, a Kennedy 

press secretary and was advised no additional assistance was 

required for the personal security of Senator Kennedy.

I McDonald direc^d the admittance of Kennedy campaign workers m­

J to the Embassy Room mnii 7:15 pm. At that time the guards 

were advise to restrict those entering to meters of the press 
and Kennedy ^aff who could be recognized by their badges.

J Witnesses reported later that they were able to cicumvent the

I guards and e°ter to Embassy Room by walking through the Colonial 

Room and serving pantry. Albert Soifer, a Kennedy supporter, 

notice numerous persons entering the Embassy Room via the pantry 

and advised a guard of the siruttlon. The guard inl<>i.ei him 

that they w^ unable to do anything about it as they did not 

have enough me'n. .

\ Guards on the inside stairs between the Ambassador -Room foyer

• and the Embassy Room were screening everyone. In some instancrs
। members of the Kennedy Staff were requieed to identify persons

! before they could enter. Other members of the Keonrdy Staff 
। plsitloned themselves near the main doors of the Embassy^ Room

and assisted campaign workers without badges into the room.

The fire inspectors dosed the Embassy Room to all entry at 
9:30 p.m., Additiontl people, however, continued to enter the 
bairoom through the pantry. A guard was placed in the pantry 

tret at 10:30 p.m. and was paatialiy effective jin stopping entry 

from that source. Ao tdditiontl guard was placed at the Colonial 
Room illr at 11:00 p.m. A busboy in the Cafe Lautrec was over­

4
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hoard advising people to enter the Embassy Room by way of the
Dolphin Court at 11:45 pm. .

Gardner assigned four guards to the area between the stage and 

Colonial Room during the speech. There were two uniTormed guards 

in the serving pantry at tl° Ume of the shooting. None of 
Gardner's guards remembered observing Sirhan B. Sirh'an prior to 
the shooting, and none of the guards' took part jin his appre­

hension after the shooting. Gardner stated that during previous 

visits by Kennedy to the hotel, it was made clear to him by 

Kennedy Staff m°tes that Senator Kennedy did not want uni- 
forred guards in his presence. He gave this as one of the reasons

I

that guards were not assigned to escort the Senator through the 
hotel during this visit. ,

*
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ELECTION NIGHT AT THE HOTEL



. ■ ■ ELECTION NIGHT AT THE HOTEL

I In addition to Kennedies group, Democrat Alan Cranston and

j popubaicon Max Rafferty, eventual winners in the primary election
। for U. S. Senator-, also had headquarters in the hotel. By 6 pm. 

there were mw people present Jin the hotel indudnng permanent 

; residents, members of the press, out-of-state guests, 'represen-

{ stives from a Buiovra Watch Company sales meeting and General

/ Electric product introduction meeeing. Delegates were arrivnng
; £or the Pacific Telephone Seminar to be held on June 6th, and

others. were registering for a two-day seminar for hospital admn-

J istrators. There was a total of 514 registeeed guests at the
1 hotel.

j The maaority of the people arrivnng at the hotel, however, were
| there to attend the anticipated election victory celebrations.

{ Jose Cerv^tes, a hotel employee, checked credentials of visitors 

at the Embassy Room, which was reserved for the Ktnntdy party,
I beginning at 4:15 p.m. At 6 p.m, the hotel secuuity guards
' drived and were assigned by William Gardner, hotel secuuity ,

chief. Genro Albert Stoeo and Jack Meritt were tssi<nttdl to 

' the main ^or of the Embassy Room to remove Cervantes. The 

crews manning the three televison moodle units jin the parking 
lot beg^ working and the Kennedy Anchor Desk in the Embassy 

Roorn was opened. The victory party for Alan Cranston began in 

the Pdrn Roorn, and a ^di band started playing at that location. 
Stowers, reported there were a large number of people in the 
Embassy Room by 6:30 p.m. , ,
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it 7 p.m, the Max Rafferty victory celebration began in the 
West Venetian Room and another band began playing. Warren '

Heaver, reporter for the New York Times,’ arrived and found 

several meters of the press present in the Colonial .Room which 

had been converted inti a press room for the evening. At 7:15 p.m. 

McDonald decided to close the Embassy Room to volunteer campaign 

workers and restrict entry to those possessing; press passes or 
Kennedy Staff badges. At 7:30 p.m.7 Captain Leonard Rohm, 

PiUlic Assemblage Unnt, Los Angeles Fire Department, noted that 
the only activity in the area of the Kennedy suite on the fifth 
floor appeared to be the -television camera and engineering crews 

moving equipment’ through the halls.

The polis dosed in Los Angeles County at 8 p.m. and the public
bars in the hotel opened. A free Champagne bar at the Rafferty 
party in the West Venetian Room also opened. Arthur Maddox, 

hotel guard, was statonned in the area with orders to keep the 
peace. A Kennedy girl, direceed pedestrian traffic at the 

entrance of the Embassy Room. Barbara Schlei, a volunteer cam­

paign worker, was assisting Kennedy waters and VIP's not having

passes into the Embassy Room.

John Frankenheimer, Holyrood producer and friend of Stator 

Kennedy, drove the Senator to the hotel from his home in Malibu. 
They arrived at 8:15 p.m. and went directly to the Kennedy suite

on the fjefth floor-.

By 8:30 p.m, admitannee to the Embassy Room was becoming diffi­

cult due to more iffictivc control of admissions at the entrances.
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I The .crowd had approached the occupancy IMit. Many witnesses,

’ however, reported cicumventing the security guards and entering’

J the Embassy Room by other routes after being turned away at the
| main doors. At 9 p.m., a singing group named "Sounds of Our Times" ■

■ entered the Embassy Room and began singing while walking around

i the floor of the ballooom. Ceeil R. Lynch, fire inspector of
I the Los Angeles Fire Department,'determined the Embassy Room’to
| be at.its safe and legal capacity at 9:30 p.m. He ordered the

| mam doors to be closed to all entry except on a one-m one-out
j , basis. , .

, Dave Kennneiy, photographer for United Press International, went 

to the fifth four of the hotel at 10 p.m. and found a press j

party in progress involving thirty to forty key members of the |
traveling press. Back at the press headquarters in the Colonial
Room, Samuel Reis, a volunteer Kennedy worker, was assigned to - 
bar unauthorized persons from entering the area. Senator I
Kennedy went to a room on the irclth foon and filmed a tilirisOoi 
interveew for NBC. He returned to the fifth fom and fUmed a 

joint interview with ABC and CBS Television. The lobby became 

crowded, and the guards .at the Embassy Room door began advising 

the people to go doweiSairr to t:he Ambassador Room. Fire 

Inspector Lynch determined the Ambassador Room to be beaching •
its occupancy limit at 11'p.m. .

Midge Jay, a member of the Kennedy Staff, was leading the sing­
ing and cheering from the stage of the Ambassador Room mbst of 
the evening. A mariachi band arr^ed and began playing, in 
iboifiit with the scheduled eitertailmiit aleeady in progress. '.
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The mariachi band had not been invited, and their actions 
came close to trgggering an incident with racial overtones 
involving the Mexican-American factions present in the room.

The Sunset Roornwas opened, and.Inspector Lynch used the mariachi 

i band to lead part of the crowd into the newly opened area. This
, room was spontaneously renamed the "Viva Kennedy Room” by those

who moved their celebratoon there.

0ne hundred forty-four representatives of the news media were , 

present at the hotel. The majority were from out of the area, I
registerngg in 116’rooms of the hotel. The group incUuded weei- 
known reporters from the largest newspapers, representatives 

■ from all. the lical papers, national magazines, wire services 

and the radio and teievisoon media.
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I
PRESSS COVERAGE AT THE AMBASSADOR

June 4, 1968/ was the date California scheduled its Primary

i Election. The several national presidential candidates, the
voters and the
election could
Election. The

press were aware that the winners of this
become the candidate of his party in the General
political climate, the Kennedy name and the results

of polls, which indicated a Kennedy win, precipitated an abun-

dance; of newrmen in Los Angeles with a large proportion of these 

at the Ambassador Hotel. The world press poised and awaited the
voice of t:he voters

The media from throughout the Free World was present in the
crowd. The writnng press, national periodical and local papers' 

were jonned by representatives of major Eastern papers, national

wire services, foreign periodical and foreign newspaper. The

^l^is^ media was represented by the three major networks 
local independent stations, foreign agencies and numerous

independent producers, hopeful of selling their product to an

unrepresented news agency. The radio station and independent

newsmen, with their portable tape recorders, completed the
large group from the news gathering agencies. .Literally dozens

of independent photographers, some hobbyists, some commeeecal

and some involved in educational projects also jonned the throng 
of professionals. More than 150 ineevvtetees idennifeed them-

selves as newsmen.

The physical layout of the election headquarters was planned

with the press in mind. The Colonial Room, adjacent to the
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> Embassy Ballroom, was set up to accommodate the press. Tables,
, . teecphones, typewriters and teletype machines were available

| exclusively tor them. . The raised piatOorrn on the sOuth will of
' the Brassy Ro©m was reserved tor cameras and their crews.'

locations wtot set aside foo crews to set up and tilr intevveews 

' jin the Gold Room, serving pantry and in two rooms on the tourth
J. , ^d fx-fth f^rs. The Kennedy Campaign Anchor Desk, established

. behind the Embassy Room stage, served as a Haioon among members .

of the news media and the Kennedy staff. The news and vote
count was oeceivea via a portable teleyype machine located nearby.

I Televisoon Antoxs were scattered throughout the hotel to mow

press and supporters to keep ln0ormed ot the elections progress. 
The wp^tance of poopeo nows covtolgt and llcesssabliyy ot the . 
candidaye to yhe mcdia appeared to be a consideration to the 

Kennedy staff. * Many witnesses later stated that their aiiign-

| ments involved assistnng °° directing the press. .One member ot
| tennedyS nltional itaff was responsible tor arranging transpor- !

I ^tion so ntwsmtn could.accompany tie candidate throughout the ,
| campaign with a ainrmua ot inconvenience. A number ot witnesses '

indicted t^t complimentary beverages were served by the Kennedy (

statt, at appropriaee Umes, to meters ot the press.

The vote t^l^on in Los Angeles County was extremely slow on 

June 4 and newsmen, paltilullrlt those engaged in He colerlgt, 

^und their stqutncts' lagging. Iitervtees, reports foom various 

election night headguaateoi, vote tabulatoons and masses ot 
Califooiil politccs by ^tw^k personaUties were utilieed to 
give tie progaams some activity. *

^MRMM MTRRW
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5 Newsmen assigned to a specific headquarters wandered into other 

’ ' candidates’ Ccldquulters, searching for something to report. A 

। press party had begun on the fifth floor of the hotel by 10 p.m.,'
I with thirty to forty participants. . •

; .Senator Kennedy's every move during the evening appeared to have

j been photographed or noted by the press. He was photographed 
| relaxing in his room during ineerveews, walking t:o the elevator

[, en route to the baliooorn, speaking'to the kiichen help, signing

- autographs and making his victory speech in the Embassy Room,

j Photographs taken of the Embassy Room’ during the speech depict

* a virtual sea of camera and sound equipment surrounding and 

■ focused on the Senator. . , ’

At approximately 12:15 a.m., when Senator Kennedy -finihhed his 
speech, he was to go to a scheduled pi•eii conference jin the 
CdXonial Room. Newsmen would be awwating his arrival, others 

would be follewnng him. A few were not aware of the conference.
I It was not determined the reason for a news conference' at 12:15 

a.m. Witnesses stated that the deadlines -for Eastern and Middle 
Western newspapers were past- at t:he t0re of the speech; however, 

otCci witnesses reporeed a rumor that members of the ’,eriting’' 
ireii■werc dissatisfied with the cavalier trcaOmcit they had 

received from the Kennedy staff and that they' had demanded the 
late hour pi•eii coifei■eiie. It was subicquoeily determined that 
those iciorting the rumors were among the few not ifoormed of 
the conference. None of the newsmen inCerveewdd reporeed being 
poorly treated during the campaign by the Kennedy staff.
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VICTORY SPEECH

• by 11:30 p.m., the crowd in the Embassy Room was -restlessly 

' anticipates an appearance by Senator Kennedy. Jesse Unruh,

J Socaker of the California Assembly, spoke to the crowd in the '
f T Embassy Room and sent his legislative assistant, Jack C. Crose,

’ to the fifth floor to get Senator Kennedy. John W. GaHivan, Jr.,
; advance man for Kennedy, made arrangements to hold an elevator

j for the Senator and his Staff. The Kennedy group, assembled i,n
I Room 512, was led to the elevator by Uno Timinson, hotel vice- „
; ’ president in charge of banquets and sales. En route to thxe ele- _ 
j vator, Senator Kennedy advised Sylvia Wright, Life Magazine
| ■ correspondent, to avoid the crowd by staying on the fifth flolr
। until after the speech. She was to then meet him in the Colonial
| Room prior to going to a private party for the Kennedy group at

I The Factory, a discotheque bar in HoU^ooS. ' ’ •

| The group boarded the elevator and Senator Kennedy asked where !

I they would exit. When he learned it would-be the lobby, he

stated he would prefer going the back way. Tirninson direct
j the group to the service elevators which took the group to the
I kicchen area. The flllowtng were on the clciatlr en route to ,

1 the kichhen: Senator Kennedy, Mrs. Ethel Kennedy, Crose, 

Canivan, Timinson,-Frank Mankiewicz, National Press Secretary; 

Richard Tuck, Public Relations aide; Fred Dutton, campaign 

Coordinator; WilHam Barry, Kennedy’s bodyguard; Edward .Minasian, 

hotel maatre d‘; Hays Gorey, Time Magazine reporter; Delores 

Huerta, a union organizer from Delano; Roosevelt Grier, ex-Ram 
football player; and Rafer Johnson, former UCLA athlete.
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i
The group left fche elevator on the lobby level and was led by 

Timinson through the kiehhen and employees’ lunch area. Kennedy 

stopped to shake hands with numerous people and several newsmen 

and one television cameraman photographed the activity. Minasian 

remembered the kiCchen area being almost empty with everything 

in order. Volunteers assisted the hotel personnel by clearnng
a path through the growing crowd of people. Senator Kennedy 

stopped and' autographed a poster for Mikael Wayne,'a bookstore 
employee and collector of campaign autographs.and souvenirs; then . 

proceeded past an honor guard of Kennedy girls through the swing- _

ing door's and onto the stage. The time was 12:02.10 a.m. This 
time.was established by KNXT video tape #456-90. ‘ -

' ' iI
Many people were on the stage and the Embassy Room was packed ■

with an over fOow crowd as Kennedy approached the podium. He 

was greeted by applause that lasted thirty seconds, making it ;

impoosible for him to be heard over t:he public address system. 

News cameras rimmed the speech foom the, south side of the room, 
and the televisOon Igghts increased the heat in the already Jot 
room. Prior to the end of the speech, a group of campaign workers 

formed a human chain to assist the Senator off the west end of 

the stage. This was apparently done in the event We Senate 
went to the Anchor Desk which was the .inoormatoon center re­
garding electiion results. Senator Kennedy spoke until 12:14.47 a.m. 

Time eiOalliceed by KNXT tape 4456-90. One of his aides said, 

"This way, Seenaoo," and he turned and exited via the rear of 

tte stage. '
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An overflow crowd heard Senator Kennedy's 
victory speech in the Embassy Room
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i .■ ' FROM THE STAGE TO THE KITCHEN'? .

| senator Kennedy walked hurriedly across the' twelve feet to the

| back door. of the stage, turned right, walked down the incline

| and through the anteroom between the Embassy Room and the
■ serving pantry. He was en route to the Colonial Room at the
! far end of the pantry. The Colonial Room was being used by the

J -writnng press." ' ' ’ ' -

According to Fred Dutton, this decision to meet with the writnng 
press jin the Colonial Room and the route to be taken had been 

J planned by him and Willaam Barry. The decision was made fvve

[ minutes before the conclusion of t:he Senator’s speech. Ordi-
naily these two"men were at the Senator’s side, but after 

returning to the stage, they were unable to get dose to him. 

Dutton replied t^t -they were positioned to the left and six 
to eight feet in front of the Senator on the stage. The Senator 
was to have exited the stage to his left and Dutton and Barry 

were to have proceeded him. Wien Kennedy left the rear of the 
stage, Dutton and Barry exited the stage on the left, entered 
the anteroorn and hurriedly forced their way thoough the crowd 
in an ateempt to catch up with Kennedy. '

A portion of the Klnnldy party left the stage vita the swinging 
d°ors and a crowd foUwwed. As the Senator entered the pantry, 

th1r1 were newsmen, hotel employees, Kennedy Staff members and 

wdl wishers ahead of him. The area within the first six^m 
• feet had been used by ABC Television as an intevvlew trlt.
; Drapes were hung over the cupboards and wooden lattcee-work
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partitions covered with green plastic flowers lined tie walls. 

Television cables were lying on the foor and a television 
monitor stood at the northwest corner. Several individuals 
were sitting on tables and chairs, while others stood in the 
pantry. Some waved to the Senaaor, others reached out hoping 
to shake his hand. The crowd foom the illionam fclawed behind . 

the Senator. As the Senator stopped to shake hands with the 
kitchen help, there were twenty-hhece known persons crowded 

into an area ten feet by ten feet.

Kennedy’s bodyguard,” William Barry, was on the incHne eight 

feet behind him and Mrs. Kennedy told him, "Stay with the Senator." 

. He then began pushing his way through the dense crowd toward

Kennedy. Fred Dutton exited' the rear of the stage and found 

himseef topped by the crowd and unable to reach the Senator. 

Ttornas Perez, seewity guard assigned to the pantry entrance, 

was pushed ^ide by the crovd and topped behind a swinging door.

Several people notad tot: something unusual was occurring, since 
it was nd Senator Kennedy’s habit ta walk ahead of his entourage. 

Attorney Frank Burns, a campaign advisor, fol^edd Senator 

Kennedy foom the stage. Turning toward the kicchen, he noted 

tot Sennad Kennedy was walking "quite fast." Burns called 
out to the Senator to slow down since he was getting ahead of 

everyone. He rushed after the Senator, overtaking him ..as he 

stopped to shake hands with kicton help. ' '

Richard Lubic stood in the kichhen as Senator Kennedy entered.
Lubic had been acquainted with the Kennedys and was familiar



with their campaign techniques. He was most impressed with 
the fact that the Senator was "out in front of the group alonl."

Valerie Schulte folowwed the Senator into -the kiCchen. Waaking 
on a crutch, she found it difficult to keep up as Senator 

Kennedy was "walking very fast."

j ' Boris Yaro, photographer for the Los Angeles Times, stood in the
| kiCchen and raised his camera as the Senator approached, but be-
| fore he could take a picture, the Senator had rushed past him. ■

। • Vincent Di Pierro, a college student and son of the hotel 
J maatre d’, was walking to the Senator's right and was approxi-
j maaely five feet from.the Senator. Prior to the Senator's . ■ '

stopping to shake h^ds and converse with hotel employees, Di
I Pierro was in the vicinity of the wan, next to the ice machine,
* that extends from the south wan of the pantry. It was at this
। location that Di Pierro observed a man standing on a tray rack
4 at the cast end of the ice machine. He recalled the man as he

I had an unusual srnile on his face and appeared to be bending

’ over, holding his right hand.against his stomach. Di Pierro

* turned his attention from this man and looked i.n the dinctoon
| of the Senator who was speaking with hotel employees.

I Karl Uecker and Edward Minas^n, hotel waater captains, accom­

; panied the Senator from the stage, to t:he kitohen. They had

I stopped and were standing by the Senator as he shook hands and

* spoke with the kitohen help. After a few momenns, Uecker reached 

! out and took hold of the Senator's right arm to assist him 
toward the Colonial Room. . > .
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THE SHOOTING

senator Kennedy stopped and shook hands with Martin Patrusky, 
a hotel waiter; he then shook hands with two other employees, 

Vincent Di Pierro and Jesus Perez. Karl Decker, with his left 

hand holding the Senator’s right arm, was standing at the west 
edge of,the' first serving table across from the ice machine. 
Lisa Urso, coieege student and campaign worker, had driven from 

San Diego for the electoon night activitees. She was standing 
in the pantry across from the second serving table. She saw 

Sirhan B. Sirhan cross her field of vision, going foom left to 
right, and move toward the Senator. Uecker was two feet foom

the table looking toward the Senator when he felt Sirhan come 

between him and the table. Urso saw Sirhan reach to his waist 

area with his right hand. He removed a gun and lunged toward 

the Senator with his right arm fully extended. The foioowing. 
statements are recillectioas of persons present in the pantry 

during the shooting:

Karl Uecker stated the suspect was in front of him when the 
first shot was fired. Uecker thought the first shot was a 

firecracker, but when the Senator stortod to fall, he became 

aware that someone was shooting. Di Pierro ^ser^d Sirhan in 

front of him and thought he was going to shake' hands with the 
Senator. Then he saw that Sirhan had a gun in his righthand. 

Then Sirhan was "up on his toes” and fiinng. Edward Minasian 

saw Sirhan moving to his right and instantly saw two fishes 
from the gun. He saw Paul Schrade fall to the floor and then 

the Senator fell. Dolores Bellens^ saw Sirhan raise a pistol,
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■ fire three shots, and observed three flashes from the, gun. she

' ^d a distinct recollection of an "angry and determined" look

I on Sirin's foce. Her view of the suspect was brief because

I pe°ple were r.oving in front: ^f her. After the third shot, she

| lost sight of Siti™. Richard LUbic observed an arm and a gun

j ported at the Senior's head. He heard the shots but did rot

( - see any fashes. «is next .rlc°ilectlon was being on the floor
| OTd ae Senior's head next to his feet. Valerie Schulte saw

Sirota puling a emu gun t:°ward the Senaaor. She recalled the 

gun was paralln to ^e side or back of the Senator's head when 

* suhan began finng. she witnessed the shoottag but did not 

, see sirhan sufficiently to identify him. a thtaeem year old 

! Kennedy worketr, Rorold Panda, saw Sirhan aiding a gun. He

heard two sh°ts, .^w name from the gun, and recalled a pause 

prior to the next six shots. ■ .

Const^ Lawn, free-tance reporter, heard the first shot, tames, 

and saw sirhan fie the gun. After the second or third shot, '
• j ^maoro grabbed ^han. she observed the Senator raise his

| ha^ and ^ggor backwards.. Evan Freed, free-a.nnce photographer,

as 9oang io take a pfc^ of the Senntor. He heard the s°und

' of f^ecrackew, saw .sirhrn with the gun in his hand, and saw 

s°me°ne toll. Pater Haaill, a writer, was twelve feet in frrot 
, of tae .senator. «e beard shots: saw Sirhan with his arm extrended 

^oottag a the tamtg Senator. He recalled a look of teemendous 

, contention °n.Si1:hrn■s face, prank Burns, attorney, heard 
| the s°unds of the ^ooti^ and saw an arm extended, holding a 

gun. He wute^ the senator fmtag back, and he appeared to

' -150- ’



to spinning. The Senator's aims were up. Sirhan had stepped 

* forward and wns firing the gun at the falling body of the
' senator. Boris Y^o, Los Angeles Times photographer, was about

। to take a picture of the Senator when he heal'd two shots. He 

5th the Senato1 take several steps backwards with his arms to 
his head. Sirhan was lunging at the Senator and firnng. Martin 
Patrusky, hotel waater, heard the shots and saw the Senator 
failing backwards. Robert Toigo, an aide to State Senator

j Anthony Beilenson, heard "popping" sounds, looked jin the direc­
tion of the sounds, and saw a mass of figures. He then crawled

. under a table. Ricard Drew, P^adena Stair News photographer, 
heard the sounds of frecracckers as he was going to take a

. pictuie of the Senator. He looked up, saw smoke, and observed

the Senator fallnng. Ralph Elmore, ABC television engineer, 
heard four shots and saw a faash from the gun . He though • 
Sirhan was resting the gun on the table while firnng . Larry 

tom, ABC talevisoon technician, remembered the sounds of fire­
cockers and people screwing. He looked up and saw bits of 
Rper fallnng from the ceiling. Joseph Jones, hotel waater, 
htrrd the shots and took cover behind the steam tables.

Juan Romero, hotel busboy, thought the gun was three feet from 
Senator Kennedy’s he^ as the shooting began'; ' Urso described

• the gun as being fieed from point-baank range. WiliaamBarry ' 
rtanned seeing the gun twelve inches foom the Senntar’s’head 
when it was fieed. Due to the excitement of the moment and 

potion of witnesses trch gave difeerent versions of the distance
• of the fi^t Shot, ranging from poitt-brank to several feet.

-151-



I .W"

)T,e distance, later established Jin laboratory examinations by 

.he coroner's Office and ScCenOific Investigation Division, was 

approximately o^ inch., .

sWam fired a total of eight shots. The first shot struck the 

Sentor in the right mastoid. Two shots struck the Senator in 
.ho right armpit, sod one shot went through the right shoulder ' 
pad of the Senior's coat, Without hittnng him. i. was the 

opi^ of DeWayne Woofer, Scieroific Invrttigatinn Divisoon, 

ihtt too bullri ihtt went through the Senaaor's coat paaditg. -
swuck Paul ^hrade, who was standing behind the Senator. Sirhan 
fl too the Im. four shots white witnesses were trying to apprehend 

hta. te nMition to ihe Stator, fve other persons were wounded.
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| SIRHAN’, CAPTURE

The following xs the account of witnesses in the kitchen area 

who participated in the capture and holding of Sirhan prior to 
the arrival of the polite.

Kari Uecker stated that he was holding Kennedy's arm and assis­

ting him through the kltchen when the first shot was freed. 
Uecker swung around and seized Sirhan by the neck. Kennedy fell 
as Uecker grappled with Sirhan who continued shooting. Uecker 

. then struck Sirhan’s hand and treed to push the gun away from

V 'the crowd.

' Edward Minasian, a waater captain, stated that he seized Sirhan 
‘ by the'left side. Attorney Frank Burns stated that he also held 

Sirhan by the side and described the scene as chaotic as the 
group holding Sirhan struggled back and forth in front of the 
serving tables. Burns recaieed that Wiliam Barry approached 

the strugglrng group and called out for a rope to tic SirCrn. 
Burns removed his belt and handed it to Barry. Burns then 
grabbed Sirhan.1 s legs, and the group lifeed Sirhan onto a 

serving table and restranned him. ‘

Roosevelt Grier stated that he was in the anteroom when he heard 

the shots. He ran into the kitcher and saw the struggle with 
Sirhrr. Grier ateempted to grab the gun from Sirhclr, but SirCrn 
was at first able to retain it. Grier then wrenched the gun

• from SirCrr’s hand, and he gave it to Rafer Johnson. Joseph 

La Hive also ateempted to grab the gun. When he saw t^t Grier 

had the gun, he let go of it. He told Grier, "Rosey, give it to
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Rafer. Rafer is here. Give it to Rafer." Johnson and La Hive 
were also in the anteroom when they heard the shots. After 
Grier got the gun from Sirhan, he handed it to Johnson who kept 

it until he turned it over to Sergeant Mc Gann at Rampart Station.

William Barry, Kennedy's bodyguard, gave the following account 

of the capture of Sirhan. He stated that he was walking behind ’ 
the Senator when he heard shooting and saw Sirhan with a gun in 

his right hand. Barry stated that he approached Sirhan and there 

was no one holding him. Barry then knocked the gun from Sirhan's 

right hand and struck Sirhan twice in the face with his fist. 
Sirhan ^trieved the gun, and Barry wrestled with Sirhan uttl 
he felt that Sirhan was under the control of others. He then - 
left to. give aid to Senator Kennedy.

Jack Gallivan, a Kennedy aide, stated that he observed Barry and 

others wrestling with Sirhan. He ran to the group and told Barry 
that he could handle Sirhan and t:hat he should assist the Senator.

Ga^or Kadar, a businessman, observed Sirhan with the gun and 

people holding his arm on a table. He stated that he jumped on 

the tcible and h^ Sirhmi on the chest and knee. George Plimpton 
and Glen Midby stated that they also atemmpted to assist in the 
struggle with Sirhan. .

Harold Burba, a Los Angeles Fire Department photographer, took 
five photographs of the capture of Sirhan approximately,20

seconds after the first shot was fieed. The persons identified 
in the photograph were Decker, Pl^mpton, Gallivan and Burns.

Grier was seen approaching the struggle and Henry Caailll, Uno
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Timanson and Richard Aubry were in the background. '

Jesse Unruh was in the pantry but stated that he did not observe 

the shooting. He stated that he could do nothing for the Senntor 
ana he concerned himself with the probeem of restoring order by 

connrolUng the crowd. When it appeared that the crowd was 

contzroll^, he cn^ebed on Sirhan's safety. He remained in 

control of Sirhan uncil the police arrived and accompanied Sirhan 

with the police to Ramppa-t Station.

KccoM^twns of witnesses ^constructing the capture of Sirhan 

place Karl uecher as the first person who grabbed him after the 
first shot. Several others: the-: immediately attempted to subdue 

Srrhah. RoossreU Gri^ succeessully secured the gun from 
Sirhan, and the persons holding Sirhan pinned Sirhan to a Irving 
table unti.1 police offccem carrived.
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Plimpton and Gallivan struggle with Sirh
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The Arrest of Sirhan
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VICTIMS AND WITNESSES IN KITCHEN

1. ROTHSTEIN, ALLEN 27. ELMORE, RALPH 53. HAMILL, PETE
2. KADAR, GABOR 28. RUBIN, BARBARA •54. LAWN, CONSTANCE
3. BRUCE, RAE 29. DEAN, LARRY 55. GUY, VIRGINA
4. PANDA, RONALD 30. CETINA, GONZALO 56. KAWELEC, STANLEY
5. JAYNE, DAVID 31. CASDEN, ROBIN 57. URSO, LISA
6. WULAMAN, EARL 32. DUTTON, FRED 58. PLTMPTON, GEORGE
7. MAMEY, NORMAN 33. DI PIERRO, VINCENT 59. ROYER, JUDY
8. CLARK, SONIA 34. BEILENSON, ANTHONY 60. WAYNE, MICHAEL

9. LA GUERRE, IICHEBLB 35. UNRUH, JESSE 61. GALLIVAN, JACK
10. MANKIEWICZ, FRANK 36. BENNETT, RONALD 62. ROSEN, RICK
11. CUMMINGS, JAMES 37. DREW,’RICHARD 63. KLASE, ROBERT
12. MOONEY, GEONINE 38. WITKER, KRISTI 64 TILSON, UNO
13. LOCKE, SUZANNE ' 39. BARRY, WILLIAM 65. GRIFFIN, BOOKER
14. MURRAY , BARBARA 40. YARO, BORIS 66. JONES, JOSEPH
15. SULLIVAN, ACQUILINE: 41. PATRUSKY, MARTIN 67. LEE, MURIEL
!6. TOIGO, ROBERT 42. SCHULTE, VALERIE 68. WITCOBER, JULES
17. RICH, WALTER 43. CESAR/ THANE • 69. MURRAY, DAVE
18. WEST, ANDY 44. LUBIC, RICHARD 70. HEALY, ROBERT
19 JACKSON, LARRY 45 ROMERO, JUAN '

20. UNRUH, BRADLEY 46. BURNS, FRANK
V-1 KENNEDY, ROBERT F.

21. MULLKAN, GLORIA 47. PEREZ, JESUS V-2 SCHRADE, PAUL

22. HOLME, BARBARA 48. UECKER, KARL V-3 GOLDSTEIN, IRA

23. HEATH, THADIS 49. FREED, EVAN
V-4 STROLL, IRWIN

24. RICH, TIMOTHY 50. IIEISIIE, EDWARD'
V-5 EVANS, ELZ^EM^

25. HARDY, CAPT. 51. AUBRY, RICHARD V-6 WEISEL, WILLU

26. BEILENSON, DELONS 52. PLIMPTON, FREDDY
D SUMAN, SIIUJAN B.
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' ' MEDICAL TREATMENT

Emergency Treatment in the-KUchert '

Dr. Stanley Abo was in th© Brassy Ballroom and heard the call 
for doctors. He identified himself, and an unknown male 
pushed him through the crowd and toward the kithhen area. His 
jacket was ripped off by the time he'reached (he kithhen. He 

was jonned by Doctors Marvin Bsher, Roland Dean and Ross 

Matthew Miller. Dr. Abo ducked Kennedy's hearbeat and found 

it very strong with a pulse xtte between 50 and 60, breath 
shallow. His jeft eye was closed. From his tursory examina­

tion he believed Kennedy had full command or control of his 
left eye and thought Kennedy was quite lucid. Dr. Abo thought 
Kennedy's brother^n-lww Stephen smth had been shot, and he 

told Kenedy, "Mf. smth is in perfect shape, just a super- ■ 

ficial would." Kennedy muttered, "Good." Continuing his 

exumnation, he found a smU entry wound back of the right ear 
and a mass of dotted blood around the wound. A little blood 

was oozing down the back of his heck. He checked Kennedy 
puxse again and f°und it to he slow, indicating possible 

ittracr^ial pressure. Ethel Kennedy, kneeling aloi^side, 
passed Dr. Abo a bag of ice. ^e pulse rate was constant, 
breathing ^rma, twenty per mnute. Dr. Abo tried to open 

Kennedy's left eyeeid, but he resisted and fooled around the 

room. He recog^eed his wife and called her name several times. 
He was able to move his hands and feet.

Daiuei Cuutain, a student, handed a crucifix to Juan Romero 

the kichhen employee. Romero placed it in KehhedyS left
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hand. Kennedy then took his Wife's hand and draped it 
Kennedy grimaced in pan but very guieUbetween his hands.

lay on the floor in

moaned, «oh, «,el.- occaHonally he moved his hips and legs 

to a more comiortlble position.

obvious discomfort. Several tfees he

There
• impairment in this.respect. According

appeared to be no

. to Dr. Abo' ^e only
neurology! eviaonce o daraage *„ to the right eye. During

the ffti^en ^nntes feat Dr. Abo tended the Senator, the 

only mdfed function Petfood was to keep the wound bleeding, 

the theory being to prevent the femtion of a dot Wtict

_ _ “a pressure and int^l hemorrhaging.

Abo pravenfxed othe individuals, from ateemptnng external 

heart: massage and mouth-to-mouth resuscitation. •

Dr. Marvin Esher arrieed after Dr
that Kennedy had sustained'a

Abo and at first believed

cardiac arrest.
left eyelid dosed, right eyelid
deviated to the right.

observed his
open with the eyeball slightly

Kennedy was not He*, semicomatose
and in witfed ^ndidon. ^ere was no visible movement in 

Kennedy's chest. Dr. Bsher chocked for
his pulse good, strong' but very, iapid. 

f°W of blood from his head wound.

Dr. Ross Matfeew Mller rushed upstairs

a heartbeat and found ‘

There was no excessive

response to the appeal for doctor's; however,
were blocked by hotel security guards.

to the kichhen -in

the pantry doors

He managed to pass and
saw Senator Kennedy Wng on the floor with blood about the 
^ad. He cocked Kennedy's pulse and found it strong but more 

rlPii fean nrrml1. T^e were, other doctors in attondance at .
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angiocath was inserted into Kennedy’s left cephalic
i vein, and a solution of serum albumen and six percent Dextran was

started Kennedy was now out of shock, still comatose, and had

hype ^reactive regexes. There were no eyelid .iefttx or

corneal rtfeexts. Dr. Baziiauskas had ordered adrenalin intecetd 
directly into the heart while the htnrt-rnng machine was being
instaieed. Upon isseening to the Senator's chest and hearing
good heart sounds, he

given subcutaneous; ly. 
made the injection in
supppotive therapy of

later instructed the ldrenalin to be

This was done by Nurse Reba Nelson who

the left shoulder. Assisting in the
the Senator and the other five victims

who arrived after Kennedy, were Nurses Nora Plehn, Alice Meeia
and Barbara Bowes.

Mrs. Kennedy was standing nearby and was asked by Nurse Eby if

she would Hike a priest called. Mrs. Kennedy replied i.n the
affirmative, and a request was reaayed to the hospptal switch-

board. Meannwhle, Mrs. Kennedy walked into the hallway and 

retunned with Reverend James W. Munndei, a laicieed priest. He

administered absolution to Senator Kennedy. As Reverend

Mundell was leaving the emergency room. Reverend Thomas Peacha

arrvved and adnmnistered last riees and annointed Senator Kennedy

with holy oil.

Nurse Eby

wound and

applied a pressure dressing to the patient's head 

to a dean bullet wound in the right shoulder area.

Polysporin ophthlanic ointment was applied in both eyes, and

eye patches placed on the eyelids to protect the cornea. At

this time, both Dr. Holt and Dr. Baziiauskas found the patient
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